McLean County Commission Proceedings Tuesday, April 25, 2023

The second regular April meeting of the Board of Commissioners was called to order at 8:31 a.m. by Chairperson Steve Cottingham. Present were Commissioners Cottingham, Steve Lee, and Barry Suydam. Also present were Auditor Beth A. Knutson; Chief Deputy Auditor Lori A. Foss; Road Superintendent Jim Grey; Assistant Road Superintendent Travis Verke; Tax Director Todd Schreiner; Dakota Central Human Service Zone Director Maurice Hardy; NDSU Extension Agents Sarah Bedgar and Kamile Moderegger; and Ethan Calvert of NorDak North Publishing.

Moved by Lee, seconded by Suydam, to approve the minutes of the previous regular meeting held on April 4, 2023, as submitted. Roll Call Vote: Aye: Lee, Suydam, and Cottingham. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Grey and Verke presented an update on department operations reporting that blading and culvert work is ongoing. Shoulder work should be starting soon. Sign truck went down yesterday again, they are trying to locate a replacement or attempting to repair with items on hand. The department would like to avoid sticking much more money into it.

Moved by Lee, seconded by Suydam, to locate and purchase a replacement sign truck not to exceed \$75,000. Roll Call Vote: Aye: Lee, Suydam, and Cottingham. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Grey reported that they have interviewed candidates for the remaining Equipment Operator II position, they have made an offer, and are waiting for the candidate's response.

Grey went on to discuss a new 51-lot subdivision being developed near Wilton. There would be 45 residential lots, four commercial, and two lots zoned industrial. They would to access the area using County Road (CR) 24. He has concerns with potential damages to CR 24 in the process since the road is narrow with no shoulders and is not designed for that type of traffic load. Since the road is located near a hill, there are also visibility and safety issues for oncoming traffic from the west on Highway 83. Grey would prefer one access point off of CR 24 with primary access from Highway 83 especially during the construction process. Knutson questioned what the purposes of the industrial or commercial zoning lots are. Schreiner stated that since this area is located in Wilton's planning and zoning authority, we have no part of it other than input on access and letting them know that the county is not responsibility for road maintenance in the subdivision. Grey needs to send a response and would like some guidance from the board. Safety concerns were discussed with adding more traffic to an already problematic area. Grey will visit with the City of Wilton and return at a later date to allow for a more informed decision by our board.

He reported that the preliminary work for the emergency snow assistance funding through the state has been completed by himself, Verke, and Administrative Assistant Noelle Kroll. It is almost ready for submission by this Friday. Knutson reported that for townships to participate, the county must participate since they go through us. We are unsure if we will qualify for any funding but we will have everything by the deadline.

Hardy was present to discuss the timing of raises for zone employees since their salaries are determined by Human Services and they operate on a fiscal year with a start date of July 1. They would like their raises to take place on July 1 versus January 1 as it is now.

Move by Lee, seconded by Suydam, to move the salary increase date for zone employees from January 1 to July 1. Roll Call Vote: Aye: Lee, Suydam, and Cottingham. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Bedgar and Moderegger were present to introduce Moderegger to the board as the new Extension Agent responsible for Family and Community Wellness activities. They presented information on their offerings and invited the board's input. She informed the board about that the upcoming Rural Resilience Retreat set for Saturday, May 13, 2023, at Washburn United Methodist Church, which will feature speakers from around the state, the local area, and Minnesota.

Knutson presented the Pledge of Securities received from TruCommunity Bank for the period ending March 31, 2023. The total public deposits were \$28,819,949.59 and the total pledged securities were \$33,546,397.26 with an overage of \$4,726,447.67.

Moved by Lee, seconded by Suydam, to accept the Pledge of Securities from TruCommunity Bank. Roll Call Vote: Aye: Lee, Suydam, and Cottingham. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Knutson reported on an email received from North Dakota Game and Fish. We now have a fully executed contract in place to get started on Sportsmen's Centennial Park's replacement of main ramp and extension of the low water ramp. We pay the bills directly and submit for reimbursement.

We have received our P-Card rebate for the period of February 2022 through January 2023 in the amount of \$10,398.90. This is a decrease of \$944.08 over last year though we had an increased number of transactions but spent about \$60,000 less.

Knutson informed the board that we received a \$6,250 matching grant applied for through Garrison Diversion Conservancy District for replacement of a boat ramp. We are required to place a plaque recognizing their donation since they contributed more than \$5,000.

Knutson presented a Gaming Site Authorization Application submitted by Gorilla Wrestling Club, Inc. of Bismarck for bingo, pull tab, and electronic pull tab activities at Rosies of Mercer for July 1, 2023, to June 30, 2024.

Moved by Suydam, seconded by Lee, to approve the Gaming Site Authorization Application as submitted by Gorilla Wrestling Club, Inc. of Bismarck. Roll Call Vote: Aye: Lee, Suydam, and Cottingham. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Knutson presented a Gaming Site Authorization Application submitted by American Legion Post 91 of New Salem for bingo, pull tab, and electronic pull tab activities at Totten Trail of Coleharbor for July 1, 2023, to June 30, 2024. She reported that they do donate some of their proceeds to Sportsmen's Centennial Park.

Moved by Lee, seconded by Suydam, to approve the Gaming Site Authorization Application as submitted by American Legion Post 91 of New Salem. Roll Call Vote: Aye: Lee, Suydam, and Cottingham. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Cottingham questioned whether or not any of these organization's report on the results of their gaming efforts and the disbursement of proceeds. Knutson replied no but we have never requested that information.

Moved by Suydam, seconded by Lee, to approve the Local Raffle Permit request submitted by the McLean County 4-H Leader's Council for a 50/50 raffle to be held on June 18, 2023, at the McLean County Fair Grounds in Underwood. Roll Call Vote: Aye: Lee, Suydam, and Cottingham. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Knutson reminded the board that the next meeting is set for May 9. She informed them that we have begun preliminary work with the audit team from Eide Bailey and we have had our first project start-up call with Tyler who has informed us that our "go live" date will most likely be July 1 since the January 1 schedule is already full.

Moved by Lee, seconded by Suydam, to approve the following vouchers for payment:

	HIGHWAY VOUCHERS	
Vendor Name	Description	Amount
CENTRAL DAKOTA COOPERATIVE	WIPER BLADES	33.97
DIAMOND MOWER LLC	CLUTCH FRICTION DISCS	325.11
ENERBASE	LIQUID PROPANE TO BUTTE SHOP, FUEL TO TURTLE LAKE SHOP	3,600.00
ESCOSUPPLY	SIX PLOW BLADES	1,250.10
FARMERS UNION OIL	LIQUID PROPANE TO UNDERWOOD	325.78
GARRISON CITY	WATER, SEWER, GARBAGE	52.95
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL	PARTS	2,427.54
MAX FARM SERVICES	FUEL	11,683.02
MCLEAN COUNTY IMPLEMENT LLC	PARTS, OIL	319.73
MDU	WASHBURN, TURTLE LAKE, MAX, GARRISON SHOPS	1,723.24
NDACO	PRE-EMPLOYMENT DRUG TEST FOR TWO EMPLOYEES	126.00
RDO EQUIPMENT	2023 JOHN DEERE 544P	179,500.00
SCOTT'S HARDWARE	VACUUM	129.99
S & J HARDWARE	PARTS	79.31
VINING OIL	DIESEL TO WASHBURN, GARRISON SHOP	53,258.02
	UNPAID VOUCHERS	
	CENTRAL DAKOTA COOPERATIVE DIAMOND MOWER LLC ENERBASE ESCOSUPPLY FARMERS UNION OIL GARRISON CITY JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL MAX FARM SERVICES MCLEAN COUNTY IMPLEMENT LLC MDU NDACO RDO EQUIPMENT SCOTT'S HARDWARE S & J HARDWARE	CENTRAL DAKOTA COOPERATIVE DIAMOND MOWER LLC ENERBASE ENERBASE ESCOSUPPLY FARMERS UNION OIL GARRISON CITY JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL MAX FARM SERVICES MCLEAN COUNTY IMPLEMENT LLC MDU NDACO RDO EQUIPMENT SCOTT'S HARDWARE S & J HARDWARE VINING OIL WIPER BLADES CLUTCH FRICTION DISCS LIQUID PROPANE TO BUTTE SHOP, FUEL TO TURTLE LAKE SHOP SIX PLOW BLADES LIQUID PROPANE TO UNDERWOOD WATER, SEWER, GARBAGE FUEL WATER, SEWER, GARBAGE FUEL WASHBURN, TURTLE LAKE, MAX, GARRISON SHOPS PRE-EMPLOYMENT DRUG TEST FOR TWO EMPLOYEES VACUUM S & J HARDWARE VACUUM S ARRISON SHOP

CHECK#	Vendor Name	Description	Amount
307464	BRAVERA WEALTH	QUARTERLY FEES - LEE, ERICKSON	1,645.80
307465	ASHLEY DEHAVEN	REIMBURSEMENT FOR BLOOD PRESSURE CUFF	47.99
307466	CENTRAL DAKOTA HOSP. LAUNDRY	CLEANING RAGS	28.00
307467	C & S REPAIR	OIL CHANGES, REPLACE RADIATOR, CHECK ENGINE DIAGNOTICS	976.73
307468	FARMERS UNION OIL CO	OIL CHANGES	141.09
307469	FAMERS UNION INSURANCE	RENEW BUSINESS PREMIUM	163,577.00
307470	FARMERS UNION OIL CO	WIPER BLADES	43.85
307471	GARRISON RURAL WATER DISTRICT	PARK RURAL WATER USAGE	75.00
307472	GRIMSLEYS	ANTI-FREEZE	10.69
307473	GUARDIAN FLEET SAFETY	EQUIPMENT, LABOR FOR 2022 DODGE DURANGO S18	6,123.14
307474	HIWAY 83 EXPRESS	GASOLINE	63.54
307475	ITD	FIRST DISTRICT, T-1 LINES, MONTHLY REDUNDANT CIRCUIT	4,960.59
		VPN, ACTIVE DIRECTORY, EXCHANGE EMAILS, INTUNE,	
		OFFICE 365, DATA PROCESSING	
307476	MARCO	STANDARD PAYMENT, FREIGHT FEE	2,107.84
307477	MCLEAN COUNTY IMPLEMENT	WIPER BLADES	20.64
307477	MDU	COURTHOUSE, LEC	59.64
307479			
	MOUNTAIN PLAINS YOUTH SERVICE	JANUARY - JUNE LAW ENFORCEMENT SHELTER MONTHLY MAINTENANCE FEE ONDO A PRINC CHARGES	6,000.00
307480	NDACO RESOURCES GROUP	MONTHLY MAINTENANCE FEE, ONBOARDING CHARGES	5,743.57
307480	NDACO RESOURCES GROUP	SERVER REPLACEMENT	14,847.70
307481	ND STATE RADIO COMMUNICATIONS	TELETYPE FIRST QTR, RENEWAL FEE	766.00
307482	NDSU EXTENSION SERVICE	SALARY - BEDGAR FIRST QUARTER	7,239.00
307483	ND YOUTH CORRECTIONAL CENTER	DETENTION CARE FOR MCLEAN CO JUVENILE COURT	284.98
307484	PRESORT PLUS	PICKUP, POSTAGE	58.15
307485	SCOTT'S HARDWARE	VACUUM CLEANER, DUST MOP, FURNITURE SLIDERS, ETC.	609.09
307486	TLOC VENTURES LP	PILOT APP IMPLEMENTATION	5,000.00
307487	MAIN STREET MARKET	INMATE MEALS	4,487.13
307488	TYLER TECHNOLOGIES	INCODE LICENSE FEE	22,070.50
307488	TYLER TECHNOLOGIES	DOCUPRO E-REVIEW QUEUE MODULE SUPPORT	736.88
307489	UNICOM	HOLE PLUG	350.45
307490	US FOODS	INMATE GROCERIES	92.64
307491	WASHBURN AUTO BODY	REPLACE WINDSHIELD, MOUNT, BALANCE, ALIGNMENT	432.22
307492	WATER PURITY INC	WATER DELIVERED	112.00
307493	WRT	911 TRUNKING RECURRING	494.36
307493	WKI		494.30
OHEOR #	\$7 1 \$7	DIRECT DEPOSIT PAYMENTS	A
CHECK #	Vendor Name	Description PENALTH SEMENT FOR TOLL AND SERVICE CHARGE	Amount
3939	JUSTIN KROHMER	REIMBURSEMENT FOR TOLL AND SERVICE CHARGE	44.63
3940	TODD SCHREINER	REIMBURSEMENT FOR TRAVEL	388.58
		PAID VOUCHERS	
CHECK #	Vendor Name	Description	Amount
307420	MCLEAN COUNTY TREASURER	TRANSFER	40,469.11
307421	NDPERS - INSURANCE	MARCH 2023 PAYROLL	159,329.51
307422	NDPERS - RETIREMENT	MARCH 2023 PAYROLL	72,645.70
307423	NDPERS	DEFERRED COMPENSATION	7,347.00
307424	DACOTAH PAPER CO	MOP, TOILET PAPER, BLEACH, CLEANERS, NITRILE GLOVES, ETC.	893.01
307425	NORTHLAND HEALTH CENTERS	INMATE DENTAL	491.00
307426	MIDCO	LEC CABLE TV	139.75
307427	WEX HEALTH	MONTHLY ADMIN FEE	115.50
307439	DACOTAH PAPER CO	GARBAGE BAGS. CLEANERS, PAPER PLATES	141.91
307440	AFLAC	MONTHLY PREMIUM	1,917.11
307441	AVESIS	VISION INSURANCE PREMIUMS	1,455.99
307442	BRAVERA WEALTH	MONTHLY CONTRIBUTIONS	3,655.49
307443	DETA DENTAL	DENTAL INSURANCE PREMIUMS	4,502.81
	FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE	FOP DUES	80.00
307444			
307445	NDPERS	SERVICE CREDIT CONTRIBUTION	70.00
307446	ND CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT	CHILD SUPPORT	4,301.00
307447	WASHINGTON STATE SUPPORT	CHILD SUPPORT	327.59

Roll Call Vote: Aye: Suydam, Lee, and Cottingham. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Board recessed at 9:27 a.m.

Board reconvened at 9:35 a.m.

Sheriff JR Kerzmann and North Dakota Bureau of Criminal Investigations (BCI) Special Agent Alex Droske joined the meeting.

Kerzmann requested authorization to purchase additional AR rifles and ammunition using budgeted dollars with excess funding from available forfeiture funds.

Moved by Lee, seconded by Suydam, to authorize the ammunition purchase in the amount of \$9,997 from M & M Sporting of Washburn funded by the budget line item. Roll Call Vote: Aye: Suydam, Lee, and Cottingham. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Moved by Suydam, seconded by Lee, to authorize the purchase of seven AR rifles from M & M Sporting of Washburn at a total cost of \$7,770 using \$2,000 approved in this year's budget and \$5,770 from available forfeiture funds. Roll Call Vote: Aye: Suydam, Lee, and Cottingham. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Kerzmann then requested authorization to use \$16,563.25 from the department's forfeiture funds to purchase bean bag rounds, assorted related items, and to secure training for the less lethal ammo. Training would be provided by a certified member of the department. Bean bag rounds require a separate launching device and the shotguns will be separate from lethal weapons and will be clearly marked. No live ammo will be shot through these units. There would be a total of nine supervisory department members trained.

Moved by Lee, seconded by Suydam, to authorize the purchase of the less lethal equipment and required training. Discussion followed. Roll Call Vote: Aye: Suydam, Lee, and Cottingham. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Kerzmann went on to request further funding from the department's forfeiture funds to purchase 20 cell phones to be issued by the department to patrol officers for business use only. The monthly cost for the 20 added lines would be \$800 with required apps including tracking to be run on the designated devices.

Moved by Lee, seconded by Suydam, to authorize the purchase of the requested 20 cell phones and set aside \$50,000 of the forfeiture funds as a hedge against potential future budget shortfalls. Discussion followed. Roll Call Vote: Aye: Suydam, Lee, and Cottingham. Nay: None. Motion carried.

In his last request of the day, Kerzmann requested funds to purchase two illuminated drones for use in the county by the department, one located on the north end of the county and the other on the south end. Droske, who serves as a certified drone operator for BCI, presented related information on the requested unmanned aircraft system (UAS) drones with regard to capabilities, thermal sensing, and various uses including crime/accident scene 3-D modeling. The tools can radically increase efficiency and accuracy in investigations. Any individuals operating this equipment will need to be certified as unmanned aircraft pilots under the FAA's Small UAS Rule (Part 107), specifically they would need to obtain a Remote Pilot Certificate from the FAA. This entails a significant amount of training and knowledge. Kerzmann requests a total of \$15,200 for two units, two batteries, and training for possibly 6-8 officers. Droske will assist with securing training and certification. There are no anticipated ongoing annual costs associated with this request. Knutson questioned whether or not it would be better to have three units in the county due to the geographic size of the county and the possibility of three teams in the department being trained.

Moved by Lee, seconded by Suydam, to authorize the purchase of three drones at a total cost of \$22,800. Discussion followed. Roll Call Vote: Aye: Suydam, Lee, and Cottingham. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Kerzmann informed the board that the annual county auction is planned for June.

Enterprise Fleet Management Representative Joshua Roberts-Lujan joined the meeting to answer further questions from the board regarding fleet vehicle leasing for the Sheriff's Department and possibly the county's other fleet needs. Cottingham questioned the maintenance costs quoted in the lease proposal and also where that maintenance would be performed. Robert-Lujan provided the source of Enterprise's data and also discussed their contracts with Ward and Grand Forks Counties. Lee expressed his preference to do that type of work with in-county businesses. Discussion followed regarding contract terms, the acquisition and implementation process, and funding of the venture.

Schreiner rejoined the meeting.

Moved by Lee, seconded by Cottingham, to proceed with this plan with Enterprise to acquire 28 Sheriff's Department fleet vehicles. Lee amended his original motion to include the stipulation that costs for the first two years will be paid with ARPA funding. Cottingham seconded the amended motion. Discussion followed. Roll Call Vote: Aye: Suydam, Lee, and Cottingham. Nay: None. Motion carried.

The board along with Knutson completed the annual performance reviews of Clerk of Court Bonnie Bohnsack and Tax Director/Veteran's Service Officer/E-911 GIS Mapping Technician Todd Schreiner.

There being no further business, the chairperson declared the meeting 2023. The commission minutes and agenda can be found on the county website:	g adjourned at 11:45 a.m. until the next regularly scheduled meeting on Tuesday, May 9, at https://www.mcleancountynd.gov .
Steve Cottingham, Chairperson	Lori A Foss, Chief Deputy Auditor